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J. 111. Ilutheson. 

·way and where in the curve the accident happened if you caµ 
tell us. 

A. The aecident happened approximately eighteen feet 
west of the Prison driveway, and from the marks 

page 187 } in the highway it was approximately one foot on 
the north side across the white line. That was the 

first mark. 
Q. That is n left lrnnd cun·e for one traveling to the west or 

' southwest? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. How wide is tl1e highway! 
A. Twenty-one feet. 
Q. Do you know the width of the respective shoulders? 
A. The north shoulder not counting the ditch on ·the level 

part of it is eight and one half feet. Tbe south shoulder is ap­
proximately seven and a half feet, not counting the ditch. 

Q. ·when you arrived where were the vehicles located Y 
lt. The Vinson vehicle was located in the north lane, right 

rear wheel was one foot approximately from the white line, 
:and the front of it was on the shoulder, north shoulder. 

The Crocker vehicle was on tlie south shoulder, right rear · 
wheel was in the ditch, and the front end up in the driveway 
toward the Ford home. 

Q. I believe the road has u white line down the center that 
is broken? 

A. Yes. 
Q. Could you establish t1rn point by either of the marks, by 

talking to the drivers or witnesses 1 

l\fr. Goode: We object to that. 
page 188 The Court: Objection sustained. 

Q. Were there marks on the highway? 
A. Yes, sir. . 
Q. ,:vm you describe the marks to the jury, first of all the 

marks that were clug into the road, and then any surface 
marks or tire marks that vou found 7 

A. There was a slight hole, little round l1ole approximately 
four inches in diameter one foot from the white line in the 
northbound lane. From tlmt hole marks came across the line 
into the southbouncl lnne, ancl the deep marks, one seven and a 
half feet long ancl one not quite as long,_ came back from this 
110Ie and slightly south. They were deep cuts in the highway. 

From the encl of the marks and scratches it kept on around 
in the direction of the Vinson vehicle. 
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Q. I understand that the gouge marks were deep, then 
came out, but you could trace them to the-

A. Marks and scratches, yes, sfr, in the highway. 
Q. And to the Vinson vehicle! 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Some of those marks started in the-­
A. Just like this, yes, sir (,Indicating). 
Q. Did y0u make a diagram of the collision:! 
A. Yes, sir. 

Note: At this point the witness presented a 
page 189 J diagram and it is shown to all counsel. 

::M:r. Goode: If Your Honor please, I suppose the jury had 
better be excluded if we are going to discuss this. 

The Court: Yes, gentlemen of the jury step outside. 

Note: At this point the jury retire from the courtroom. 

Jury out. 

Mr. Goode: Vv e object to the introduction of this sketch. 
It not only undertakes to show the point of impact, which we 
were not allowed to show in our evidence on yesterday, hut 
it shows other things which are objectionable. 

The Court. It is indicated on there, I believe. 
Mr. Goode : It has a sketch of the two cars coming to­

gether, which seems to be substantially on the north side. In 
addition to that it indicates the Vinson wrecker on its proper 
side and running over to the center of this road on the wrong 
side and then coming back all of which undoubtedly the officer 

got from some other parties, or party, and it is 
page 190 ~ not at all in harmony with what he saw when he 

went there. 
'\Ye were required to leave off our information of that type. 

We will be delighted to go back and put ours in, if Your Honor 
please. 

By the Court= 
Q. ,vhen did you make thisf 
A. That morning. 

The Court: He may indicate on the diagram marks that he 
found· in the road there, marks where the truck came to rest 
and all of that that he knows ubout, but without any writing. 
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Then counsel may ask the witness about them, and then the 
witness can demonstrate on the diag-ram exactly what he 
means if it is not clear. 

l\Ir. Goode: As I understand it your ruling is that he would 
have to eliminate this collision point shown on the plat. 

The Court: Yes, and just show tbe marks in the road, show 
where the vehicles came to rest. He can put where he saw the 
debris, but no writing on it. 

Mr. G.arrett: If Your Honor please, on yesterday 1\fr. Goode 
had a chart introduced that I think had substantially the same 

things on it. It had the brush marks and things 
page 191 } like that on it. 

The Court: But the one you attempt to intro­
dnce is not that situation. 

Q. This is where the truck came to rest, is it, Mr. Hutche­
son? (Indicating on diagram). 

A. Yes, sir. 
Q. That stays on. Is this the wrecker (Indicating on dia­

gram) Y 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. That stays on. You will have to cut out these right 

here. 
A. I see. 

Mr. Garrett: "\Ve object to Your Honor's ruling on the 
amendment, note our exception. 

The Court: I understand. 
Mr. Garrett: Since we feel that the trooper by talking 

to the witnesses and by being there himself is entitled to set 
forth those facts. 

Of course, I note my exception to the Court requiring the 
trooper to remove part of that from the diagram. 

The Court: You may state for the record that I rubbed 
out the wrecker, the diagram of the wrecker shown there 

coming from the south side of the road going to 
page 192 } the· north side. Rubbed out the representation of 

the two cars at the actual point of collision, and I 
rubbed out the big truck approaching the point of collision. 

I believe that is all I eliminated. 
:Mr. Sterne: Before you do that: If he rubs the whole thing 

out, while it doesn't make a lot of different, we still do not 
have the thing that we objected to in the record. I think if 
that is going to be done, then we would not have the original 
diagram that we objected to to go into the record. 
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The Court: Very well, I will let the witness draw a new 
diagram. 

M:r. Sterne: I think tllat would be better. 

Note: At this point the witness is handed a sheet of yellow 
paper, and begins to prepare a new diagram, which he does, 
and now presents this new diagram to the Court. 

Note: At this point the jury is asked to come back into the 
courtroom. 

Jury in. 

Note: At this point this refused diagram is presented, 
marked and filed as Refused Exhibit 1. 

page 193 ~ By Mr. Garrett: (continued) . 
Q. Trooper Hutcheson, I believe you have pre­

pared a diagram of what you found at the scene of the acci­
dent when you got there T 

A. I have. 
Q. This is the Prison driveway ~·ou have marked Convict 

Camp No. 271 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. On the opposite side of the road you have the Ford 

driveway, that is the little one that has been mentioned here 1 
A. Yes, sir. 

Mr. Goode: If Your Honor please, may I suggest that he 
allow the officer to explain the diagram rather than asking 
questions that are suggestive? 

The Court: Let the witness explain it first, then you can 
ask him any questions about it that are proper. 

A. When I got there at the scene and found the Vinson 
wrecker approximately thirty-five feet from this hole, first hole 
in the road, which was probably one foot from the north 
shoulder-

Q. North slioulder? 
A. North side, across the white line. It was 

page 194 ~ probably thirty-five feet to the right rear of the 
Vinson wrecker, it was approximately one foot 

from this white line and extended on the north shoulder. The 
Crocker vehicle traveled approximately fifty-six feet from 
this point over and the front end of it was resting in tho 
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driveway -0f Mr. Ford's home. In front of the Convict Camp. 
This. hole was in the road approximately one foot from the 

·white line, and it was a mark extending from it coming over 
on the south side approximately seven and a half feet long. 
That was a deep cut. Aud a deep cut right beside it, both of 
~hem extending slightly south. 

And from the end of these deep cuts headed back north were 
scratches and marks in the direction that the Vinson wrecker 
lmd gone. 

This Crocker vehicle, first it was oil scattering from the 
center of the highway and glass and some dirt, that was 
mostly in the southbound lane, the oil. 

Q. ,vhere was the dirt 1 
A. Approximately in the center of the highway! 
Q. And the glass 1 
A. That was approximately in the center, and then it was 

:all scattered buck mostly on the south side. The bulk of it was 
in south lane. There were marks through this oil, dual trnck 
marks made by dual wheels tlmt headed in the direction .that 

this Crocker vehicle went, and tracks off the 
page 195 } shoulder. 

Q. South side Y 
A. Yes, where the vehicle went over here {Indicating to the 

jury). It nppea red to be rolling, didn't appear to be sliding 
or skidding. 

,vhen the Vinson wrecker came to rest here gas was leak­
ing, it was enough grade on the highway for gas to be running 
<!lear across the higl1way. l\fr. Vinson was laying right down 
alongside beside. of the wrecker with his head down here, and 
I covered him up with a blanket, and waited for the ambu­
lance, which was just a few minutes before it got there. 

We didn't attempt to move anything until he had gone to 
the hospital. 

This slight hole in the road was ajJproxim~tely eighteen 
feet from where the straight line from this road came out. 

Q. That is the Prison drivewayi 
A. Yes, sir. It was a slight bend in here, but I took it from 

au imaginary straight line right down the edge of it. 
Q. Trooper Hutcheson, was this mark here, this mark right 

there, found on the scene 1 
A. Yes, sir. 

Q. What are tl1ose marks? 
page 196 ~ A. It was a slight black tire mark which started 

probably two feet from the north edge of the north 
shoulder, and came in the direction right up to a dark skid 
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mark. This dark skid mark was approximately one foot in 
length, and it came to a point and I1eaded right back. That 
was approximately three feet from the end of this white line. 

Q. How far into wI1ich lane t 
A. It was approximatelv one foot in tl1e north lane. 
Q. That is the westbound lane? 
A. Yes. 
Q. This mark that you I1ave twenty-four feet up to the­

skid mark which is one foot on the north side of the white 
line: Could you describe that mark? 

A. It was 8 slight tire mark like a car wherr-

:Mr. Lewis~ We object to wlmt it is like. 
Mr. Garrett: I think this gentleman has seen enoug·h acci­

dents fo be able to tell us about that. 
Mr. Lewis: He was abont to say what it looked like to him. 

By the Court: 
Q. Can you tell wlrntlter it was a tire mark or notr 
A. Yes, sir, it was a sligl1t tire mark. 

By Mr. Garrett (continued): 
Q. Can you describe how wide it was f 

A. Approximately two or three inches. Wasn't 
.page 197 } the complete width of a tire. 

Q. That led down to this mark right here! 
.~. Yes, sir. 

Note: This diagram drawn by the witness is marked and 
"filed as Defendant Exhibit B. 

Q. I herewith hand you some photographs; 

The Court: Have you seen them, Mr. Goodei 
Mr. G,oodc: No, sir, I have not. 

Note: The photogt·apbs are now banded to .Mr. Goode 
for inspection. 

Mr. Goode : I do not object to them, I am glad to have them 
in the evidence. 

Note: These photograps are now handed to the reporter 
and are marked and filed as Defendant Exhibits C-H, respec­
tively. 

Q. I hand you Defendant Exhibit C and ask you if that is a 
photograph of the highway leading south or southwest t 

A. Yes, sir. 
Q. I hand you Defendant Exhibit F and ask you if that 
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is a photograph of the highway approximately the scene of tho 
accident headed east and northeast? 

A. Yes, sir. 
Q. I hand you Defendant Exhibit G, and ask you if that is 

a photograph of the scene of the accident headed west and 
showing the scars in the highway? 

page 198 ~ A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Now Defendant Exhibit H, it shows the high­

way headed west, and a little bit back from where the-
A. Yes. 
Q. And Defendant Exhibit E and Dare photographs of the 

wreckerf 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Come over here before the jury, please sir. 
A. All right. 

Note: Mr. Garrett rmcl the witness are now before the 
jury. 

Q. I hand you aµ;ain Defendant Exl1ibit G. ·wm you make 
a mark on this, either with my pencil or yours where you 
found the V-shapecl scnr mnrk located? 

A. It was approximately right here (Indicating· on photo-
graph). 

Q. Put a l10le throug·h the picture at that point. 
A. Yes (So doing). 
Q. Please put an A with my pencil tlrnre at that point. 
A. All right (So marking). 
Q. ,von't you also make a hole at approximately where 

the tire mark that you say extended I believe you said twenty 
or twenty-two feet began? 

A. Yes (So doing). I made that approximate. It is hard to 
tell exactly. It is hard to tell on a picture like 

page 199 ~ that exactly. 
Q. "'ill you mark that'' B," the point wliere the 

tire mark began leading up to the other mark? 
A. Yes, sir (Doing so). 
Q. Will you point out to the jury where these tire marks 

were that led off to the left, Crocker 's left T 
A. It was oil in that section right here (Indicating). 
Q. That is on the south side of the road? 
A. Yes. And tire marks went through this oil rigbt over 

in the direction to this driveway. The oil didn't extend that 
far, but it led in that direction, tire marks did. You see 
tire marks in the dirt where it ran over here. 
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Q. This mark over to the left, that was fresh in the road 
at the time? 

A. Yes. 
Q. One over here Y 
A. Yes. 
Q. Will you tell us, sir, how far it is from the point where 

the curve begins to the point where this V mark was located 
in the road Y Have you stepped it off yourself 1 

A. Yes, sir. I am not exact about that, but I believe it 
was approximately fifty feet. . . 

Q. How far is from the Ford driveway to the pomt where 
the Y mark was, that is how far is it from the north line of 

the Ford driveway extended across the highway 1 
page 200 } A. A1Jproximately sixty-four feet. 

Q. Have you also stepped off the distance from 
the Prison drivewav to the trees on this farm to the south 
end on the right-hand side of the road going south 1 

A. Yes, sir. 
Q. How far is that 1 
A. Approximately 350 feet. 
Q. Did you inspect the Crocker vehicle subsequent to the 

accident? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Did you find anything hanging down underneath it 7 
A. No, sir. 
Q. Did you notice wl1ether the spring was broken or not T 
A. Yes, I noticed the spring broken. 
Q. Arc you somewhat familiar with the Crocker vehicle, the 

construction of the springs and the way they are applied to a 
vehicle? 

Mr. Goode: Objection, unless he withdraws his "some­
what." 

.Q. Are you familiar with the construction of the front end 
of a vehicle of this nature 1 

A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Come over here again, now sir. You recall that I drew 

this work of art on yesterday for one of the wit­
page 201 } ncsses (Defendant Exhibit A). The witness tes­

tified that the spring shackle broke at this point 
where this bolt runs through the frame. Is that vour under-
standing of where it broke? • 

A. I don't know exactly where it broke, but I did put here 
that someone said it was broke. 
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'Q. As you saw it broken was .any part of the spring hang­
fog U-OWR f 

A. No, sir. 
Q. Could any pnrt of the hanger or any part of that hang 

down to the ground f 
A. I don't see how it could. 
Q. ·wouldn't it as a matter of fact lay up against the frame? 
A. That is the way I think it would be, yes, sir. 
Q. If the leaves were missing out of the spring-Did you 

:see any missing f 
A. I don't recall any being missing. I am not certain of 

that. 
Q. Y.ou saw nothing hanging-down under the Crocker truckf 
.A. No, sir. 
Q. Was the tire deflated when you got there 7 
A. I am not certain of tlmt, but it was on the wheel. 

Q. The wheel was on the vehicle? 
JJage 202 } A. Yes, .and the tire was on that. 

Q. Mr. Pond was at the scene of the .accident 
when you got there f 

A. Yes. 
Q. I believe you live near by tl1e scene of the accident? 
A. Yes. 
Q. ,Vhere is your home with reference to the scene of the 

.accidenU 
· A. Approximately a quarter of a mile west. 

Q. Is tliat your regular area of patroU 
.A.. Yes. 
Q. You were on duty at the time or were called to the scene t 
A. I was called. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

By l\fr. Goode: 
Q. 1\fr. Hutcl1eson, I notice on your sketch which you have 

marked as Exhibit B, and if your will stand up here I will 
ask you about that: \Yhat does that little mark indicate (In':" 
<licating)? 

A. Scratch in the highway that was there that morning. 
Q. Is it a scratch or a cut? 

A. Cut. 
page 203 } Q: Is it still there 7 

A. Yes, sir. 
· Q. Is it straight like you have drawn it, or does it have an 
angle at the end? · . 
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A. It has a sligl1t angle at the end, yes, sir. 
Q. I will ask you if tllat is tlie cut in the higl1way wbich 

you are undertaking to put on yoar sketch 1 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. That is approximately three feet from the south edge 

of the hard surface 'l 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. And that is there now1 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. You heard the testimony yesterday, did you not r . 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Yon heard tlie witnesses testify that the demonstration 

had been made by fitting the bumper which was on the Vin­
son wrecker into that cut mark f 

A. Yes, sir. 
Q. And you say that is still theref 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. You heard tlie testimony yesterday with reference tCll 

these marks here f 
A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Near the center, two of tllem 'l 
page 204 ~ A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Still two there 'f 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. And you testified I believe tliat the big truck went 

through oil l1ere in the south lane 'i 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. And continued over to this bank f 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Did it go up that hank 1 
A. Up tlmt and over into tile driveway. 
Q. Into this driveway? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Tlie front end extending into the driveway 'l 
A. Yes, sir, almost in line with that pole. 
Q. You also testified I believe that the wrecker was driven 

around in a semi-circle and ·came out here? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. In other words, from I1ere it was knocked around ancl 

faced back in this way? 
A. Yes, sir. Front end straightened around, slanted oft 

the llighwny. 
Q. :l\fost of tl1c oil and debris was on the south side 7 . 
A. Yes. Started in the center, greatest bulk of the oil was 

in the south side. · 
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Q. You say you diun 't examine the big truck too 
page 205 ~ carefully. In other words, you are not certain 

that the right front casing· was blo"\\'ll out, are 
you! 

A. No, sir. 
Q. You heard the testimony yesterday that the right side 

was down on the ground so that they had to get it up. Was 
that correct? · 

A. Yes, sir, I heard that testimony. I don't remember 
it being· that it was down so low he had to get it up to put an 
extra chain on it. I don't remember that. 

Q. You wouldn't say l1e didn 'tf 
A. No, sir. But the wheel and all was on it. 
Q. The wheel was on it t 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. ,vith reference to the spring: You do say that the back 

end of the spring and spring hanger was ·broken (Referring 
to Defendant Exhibit A)? 

A. I have in my notes the spring was broken. But I don't 
know where. 

Q. You didn't go under there enough to see exactly to what 
extent? 

A. No, sir. 
Q. Do you know of anything that would prevent a heavy 

load from pushing down the end of a spring even if the axle 
were back here f 

A. No, sir, I don't know. 
page 206 ~ Q. May I ask you about the tire marks: You 

didn't determine that there were any skid marks 
from either vehicle leading to this scene? 

A. No, sir. 
Q. You so testified in the other court, in the preliminary 

hearing? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. That there were no skid marks leading to the scene of the 

wreckY . 
A. Yes, sir. · 
Q. You are not able to say what made these marks over 

here which you say appear to be like tire marks? 
A. Yes, sir, tire marks, tire made those. 
Q. A tire made those·? 
A. Yes. 
Q. You don't know when? 
A. No, sir. 
Q. You are fairly familiar with that road along there? 



126 Supreme Court of Appeals of Virginia 

J. M. Hutlieson. 

A. Yes. 
Q. Do vou know the width of iU 
A. Approximately twenty-one feet. 
Q. The white line is in the center 7 
A .. Yes, sir, approximately. 
Q. And wbat about the bank? Did you notice how much 

bank there is there 1 
page 207 } A. On which side 1 

Q. I mean tbe road, whether it is level or 
whether-

A. It is banked slightly, yes, sir. 
Q. Wl1ich side 7 
A. To the south side. South side is tbc low side. And 

enough so water will run that way. 
Q. How long have you been a trooper Y 
A. Approximately tl1ree years and three months. 
Q. Have you ever experimented with driving into a banked 

curve to sec how your automobile will be guided if you don't 
exercise manual control over it? Does it run up or does it 
follow the slope of the road down? 

A. I never have really experimented with it, no, sir. 
Q. Do you know as a police officer in driving a car on a 

banked curve that it will take the low side? 
A. Yes, sir. 

RE-DIRECT EXA1\HNATI0N. 

By Mr. G.arrett: 
Q. Did that tire mark, not the skid mark, I don't know 

whether I made it too clear before-

lfr. Goode: I object to repetition. ,vben counsel says he 
wants to make it clearer, I don't know wl1ether he covered it 

before, lie just wants to emplmsize it and under­
page 208 } score it. 

The Court: I couldn't say just what went on 
about that. I don't know which mark he is talking about, and 
which one he didn't mention. 

l\Ir. Garrett: I just wanted to ask him if that tire mark 
extended from the point "B" that he has placed on tl1e photo­
·graph to the point "A." 

Mr. Goode: Objection. He has already testified to that 
and marked it out with an "A" and "B.'' 

The Court: If lie has already covered it once that is enough. 
Mr. Garrett: If you agree he has already testified to that 

then that covers it, I am sure. 
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Q. Did you go down there on one occasion and make an 
experiment us t.o how far a vehicle coming from the west could 
:sec a vehicle coming from the cast, and vice versa? 

A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Would you describe that to the jury! 
A. Yon can see coming from the east approximately .2 of a 

mile and coming from the west approximately .2 of a mile. 

]3y the Court : 
Q. That would be the samei 
A. Yes, and it is a .building, old building out near the yard., 

Ford home, which obscures the vision in that curve.· 

page 209} By Mr. Garrett: (continued) 
Q. That shows in the phot.ograph Defendant 

Exhibit ]j,. The building you mentioned is to the right side of 
the photograph, and to the right side of the highway as that 
photograph was taken f 

A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Mr. Goode asked you about a vehicle going into a curve, 

that is one that is banked somewhat having a tendency to go . 
to tho lower side of the road. Wouldn't it likewise be possi­
ble that it would have a tendency to go ahead and straighten 
out the curve so to speak, continue through the curve and not 
follow the road? . 

A. Yes, sir, depending upon the speed. 

·witness stood aside. 

page 210 ·} NETTIE TURNER CROCKER, 
u defendant, first being duly sworn, testified as 

follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION. 

By Mr. Garrett: 
. Q. ,vm yqu state your full name' 
A. Nettie T. Crocker. 
Q. Where is your home? 
A. Smitl1ficld. 
Q. I believe you are the administrator of your late bus· 

han<l's estate? 
A, Yes, sir. 
Q. ·when dicl he die f 
A. August 17. 
Q. What year? 
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A. Two years ago. 
Q. Was that the August just before this accident occurred f 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Were you administrato1· of the estate at the time the 

accident occurredi 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Will you tell us the type of business that you husband 

was engaged in 7 
page 211 } A. Trucking, hauling. Fertilizer, paints. 

Q. This tmck that was involved in this accident 
was operating in the business of the company Y 

A. Yes, sir. 
Q. At the time of the accident! 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. You of course did not see the accident r 
A. No. 
Q. Did Thomas Brown report to you the manner in which 

the accident happened 7 
A. Yes, said he was on his right side of the road and-

The Court: Don't tell what he told you. 
Mr. Garrett: I believe tliey brought that out on yesterday,, 

Your Honor. 
The Court: She cannot testify to it now. 
Mr. Garrett: "\Ve will not press the point. 

Q. You did talk to Brown after the accident r 
A. Yes. 

Witness stood aside. 

page 212 } Note : At this point the jury retire. 

Jury Ont. 

Mr. Garrett: "\V c rest our case, if Your Honor please. 
:Mr. Goode: We have a question we are going to have to 

ask Mr. Pond. "re want to put Sergeant Nowlin back on the 
stand also, and may I suggest, subject to the approval of coun­
sel for the other side and the Court, that we could put l\Ir. 
Nowlin on for these distances, nnd tJien wMle tlie view is going 
on we could work out the instructions, and then when the 
other witness from town comes we could put him on for tl1ig 
one question. 

The Court: All right. 

Note: At this point the jury return to the courtroom. 

Jury In: 
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SERGEANT P. C. NO"WLIN, 
page 213 ~ being recalled, testified further as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION. 

By l\lr. Goode: 
Q. Sergeant Nowlin, Mr. Pond testified that on 1\fnreb 13, 

1953, he with you and others went to the scene of this acci­
dent. You heard his testimony? 

A. Yes, sir. 
Q. He didn't have the distances which he directed you to 

make. Do you have a sketch showing those distances? 
A. I do. 
Q. ·would you let the lawyers for the other si<le see it, 

please? 
A. Yes, sir (Handing some information to counsel). 

Mr. Sterne: If Yom· Honor please, this is subject to the 
snme objection as the sketch. It is written all over. 

The Court: Let me see it. 

N otc : This sketch is now shown to the Court. 

Mr. Goode: '\Ve are not nnxious to get the sketch in, but 
l\Ir. Pond testified that he authorized the officer to make these 
steps. · 

The Court: Suppose you just call them off. 
Mr. Goode: Just leave the sketch out? Very well. 
The Court: That is right. 

page 214 ~ Q. Sergeant Nowlin, do you recall that Mr. 
Pond was present when you made the notes on 

which you are to testify now 7 
A. Hewas. 
Q. You heard l\fr. Pond say that we went there and made 

a cross mark in the road where he was sitting in his automo-
bile? · 

A. Yes, sir. 
Q. How far was l\Ir. Pond actually from the hard surface 

portion of the road, according to his indication 1 
A. Just about ten feet. I stepped all of these distanceR 

off, didn't use a tape line. Stepped them off, so they would 
be approximate. 

Q. l\Ir. Pond stood at this point and directed you to go west 
on the higlnvay to the point where he first saw the Vinson 
wrecker. How far was that point? 
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Sergeant P. 0. Nowlin. 

A. It was 370 feet from the position he was standing at. 
Q. Then when he directed you to come back toward the 

postiiton he was standing to the point he was first certain 
the Vinson wrecker was on the wrong side of the highway, 
how far was that from where he was standing? 

A. 170 feet. 
Q. Then when he directed you to stop at the point where 

the Vinson wrecker started turning rigbt from the 
page 215 ~ north lane to the right lane, how far was that 

· from where Mr. Pond was standing? 
A. Seventy feet. 
Q. Then when you were directed to go east on the high­

way to the point where he first saw the Dodge truck, how far 
was this point from where Mr. Pond was standing? 

A. That was 290 feet. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

By ~Ir. Garrett: 
Q. Mr. Pond, w]1en lie made these tests, lrn was standing 

. on the drive and wasn't in llis vebicle 1 · 
A. No, sir, he was standing there. 
Q. And you were not using other vehicles to make this test f 
A. No, siF. 
Q. ,vhen was the test made? 
A. March 13, 1953. 
Q. Do you l1ave the Ford driveway on your map f 
A. No, sir. 
Q. "Ton 't you tell us with reference to the north line of the 

Ford driveway extended across the highway, you understand 
what I mean-

Mr. Goode: If Your Honor please, let's get this straight. 
He objected to us putting the map in. ,v e are 

page 216 ~ not-
The Court: He will not put the map in. 

Mr. Garrett: I will let him hold it. 

Q. My question was, from a point where the north line of 
the Ford dr!veway wo~ld be extended a~ross the highway, 
from that pomt where did Pond say the Vmson truck started 
its sudden turn to its righU 

A. Ford driveway didn't enter into any of the discussions 
or measurements that I made that morning. I merely walked 
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Sergeant P. C. Noivli-n. 

up the wad at his directionJ stopped at his signal, and paced 
off the distance back to his position. 

Q. You don't know whether that would be right in front of 
the Ford driveway or noU 

A. No, sir. 
Q. You heard him state that when the truck passed the 

uorthern line of the Ford driveway that the wrecker, rather, 
was wholly on the improper side of the highway 1 

A. As it passed the Ford drivewayJ 
Q. Yes . 
.A. Yes, sh:, I heard him say that. 

·witness stood aside. 

page 217 } The Court: Is that all! 
Mr. Goode: That is all until Mr. Pond comes. 

The Court: Sheriff, I would like for you to take the jury up 
to the scene of the accident. Nobody is· to go with you, just 
you and the jury. . 

l\fr. Goode: We should like to have the jury to have the 
privilege of, if they so desire to have the exhibit with them 
to make such tests as they may desire to make over there. 

The Court: It doesn't look to me like they can carry that 
bumper very far, especially in an automobile. 

I have no objection to the jury taking it. If you all want 
to take it you can do that. Do you all want to take that up 
there with you? 

A Juror: I think we should have it. 
The Court: Sheriff, take them up there now, please, sir. 

I don't want anybody to go with you except the jury. Don't 
open your mouth up there when you get up there about any­
thing. Don't let unybody talk to them about this accident up 
there at all. Let them go up there and see what they can 
see, that is all. Just look around, nobody is to talk with them. 
If they want to take the bumper with them they can do it. 

Sheriff Butterworth: I don't know how they 
page 218 } can take it. Seems to me we would have to have 

a truck. 
A Juror: I can take it in my car if we can get it there. 
The Court: That is perfectly all right with the Court. 
A Juror: I can take it. 

Note: At tl1is point two jurymen take the bumper out of 
the courtroom in the presence of the Sheriff to view the scene 
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James. C. Pond. 

of the accident, and a view is now had by the Sheriff and 
the jury. 

,vhile the view is being had, recess is had for I unch. Follow­
ing lunch the taking of evidence is reswned, as follows:. 

l\fr. Goode: We wish to recall :Mr. Pond, who was on the­
stand this morning. 

JAliES C. POND, 
resuming the witness stand, testified further as f oilows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION. 

By Ml". Goode: 
Q. :Mr. Pond, you testified this morning, and we overlooked 

in your cross examination asking you a question 
page 219 ~ which we desire to ask in order to get it into the 

· record. · 
A. All right. 
Q. On the occasion to which you testified as we went ove1· 

to the scene of the accident when Sergeant Nowlin was with 
us: You stated did yon not that both of the vehicles appeared 
to you to be running at about the same rate of speed! 

A. That is right. 
Q. And that is what you testified to today f 
A. Yes. 
Q. You didn't see either one of thein weaving and rocking 

in the road, did you f 
A. No, sir. 

)fr. Sterne: Let's see, if Your Honor please. Isn't that 
pure hearsay! 

The Court: Not if he saw it. 
Mr. Sterne: He has based his question on what this gentle­

man told him. He has asked this man didn't he make a state­
ment. He didn't ask him what speed they were running. He 
asked him didn't !fr. Pond sav this at a certain time. 

T11e Court: He asked the ·witness tlien if he saw eithei· 
vehicle weaving in the road, and he said he did not. 

:Mr. Goode: I asked him if tlrnt is his testimony now, and 
he said that it is. 

page 220 ~ That is all I want to ask the witness, thank you. 

\Vitness stood aside. 
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The Court: Is that all f 
Mr. Goode: I have a motion at this time, if Your Honor 

please. In other words, in order to simplify the issue, because 
of this evidence which we have introduced is substantive 
evidence a1:,rainst Thomas W. Brown nnd not against Mrs. 
Nettie Turner Crocker individually,· mid as administratrix of 
the estate of C. B. Crocker, deceased, in 01·der to clarify the 
case and simplify it as much as ,ve can, and simplify the issue, 
we desire to non-suit as to l\lrs. Nettie Turner Crocker, in­
dividually, nnd Nettie Turner Crocker, a(hninistratrix ot' the 
estate of C. B. Crocker, deceased. 

The Court: All right, sir. You cun do it any time before it 
goes to the jury. That limits the matter as to Brown. You 

gentlemen of the jury may wnlk around here and 
page 221 ~ go outside, but stay in calling distance ot' the 

Sheriff. 

Note: At this point th(' jury retires, mid Court and counsel 
retire to Chambers. 

In Chambers. 

Mr. Garrett: If. Your Honor pleasc>, I have a motion that 
I wish to mnke. 

The Court: All right, sir. 
Mr. Garrett: In view of the last development in the case 

relative to Mr. Goode non-suiting as to :Mrs. Crocker, both 
individually and as administrat.rix of this estate, we move 
for a mistrial, since we feel that the only purpose of it is 
to lead the jury to belicv<> that Brown is responsible, or to 
·prejudice Brown, and it overlooks the fnct that he is the agent 
of Mrs. Crocker, she is ultimately responsive anyhow. 

'\Ve feel that it is bound to confuse the jury and leave them 
in doubt as to just what the true legal situation is here. 

1\Ir. Sterne: In other words, I don't know what the situa­
tion is myself, but it seems to me certainly if we are not 
granted a mistrial we certninly have to have ·an instruction 

that if the juclg·ment goes ag·ainst the agent the 
page 222 ~ principle would he liable, I take it. But we think 

that is a simple matter for the jury. 
l\Ir. Goode: If the Court please, to the contrary it is ex­

actly the opposite. I do not feel that l\Ir. Garrett means 
what he says about this being our only purpose, to confuse 
anybody. 

We have the testimony of Brown setting out certain state­
ments. One was that h<> stnted on the occasion to two officer~ 
of Dinwiddie County that h<> was driving along with·his eyes 
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on the Bond Bread truck, and when be changed them from 
that position and looked ahead this vehicle was right in front 
of him. 

That to my mind is a very damaging statement to Brown. 
'rI1at statement is not evidence against Mrs. Crocker, or the 
estate of Mr. Crocker. That is substantive evidence against 
Brown. We have the authorities, but we do not think there 
is any need to cite them unless Your Honor desires us to do 
that. 

He has made other statements which will involve the doc­
trine of Last Clear Chance. He made several statements 

which are binding on him, but not on Mrs. 
page 223 ~ Crocker, or the estate of Mr. Crocker. 

If the attorneys for the other side had read 
these authorities I am sure they would see that it is more con­
fusing to leave them in there "than otherwise. 

I say that for a purpose, if Your Honor please. I have 
an honest purpose in it. ,v e have a right to n01~-suit. It 
has been done in this very court. I have been in cases where 
.the non-suit is against me. They have no real grounds for 
their objection. 

The Court: As far as I know there is no limitation for a 
non-suit. 

Mr. Garrett: I am trying to say that there is no limita­
tion on their right to non-suit, but I think when they do it 
at a point in the trial such as we have here it can't do anything 
hut prejudice the rights of the remaining defendant. 

The Court: I will have to overrule the motion. 
Mr. Garrett: We note oui· exception. Then, sir, my otlier 

motion is a motion to strike the evidence. 
The Court: Make it very short, please, sir. 

Mr. Garrett: I have some things I want to 
page 224 ~ state for the record, an<l it will not take very long. 

We take the position that tllere is no evidence 
of negligence on the part of Brown of probative value. None 
of it is affirmative evidence. It is all inferences. 

Secondly, any inferences or conclusions from the physical 
evidence of the marks in the road, location of tlrn various 
physical marks in the case, are overcome by positive and 
direct evidence of tlle only eye-witness to tlle accident. 

Thirdly, the plaintiff has callee.I Brown as an adverse wit­
ness, and to the extent that he is not contradicted the plain­
tiff is bound by his evidence and testimony, and such testimony 
and evidence both of Brown and the only other eye-witness 
conclusively convicts the plaintiff, or the plaintiff's decedent, 
of contributory negligenC'e. 
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Fourthly, there is no inference of negligence on the part 
of Brown, none can be drawn from the physical evidence, 
since it is apparent., as has often been held, that what occurs 
after a collision takes place, that is the positions of the 

vehicles, how they come tq rest und so forth, and 
page 225 } the course that they take after the collision, is 

immaterial 
Fifthly, all the evidence, even the evidence of the plaintiff, 

convicts the plaintiff of contributory negligence as a matter 
of law in driving on the improper side of the road. 

Sixthly, there is no presumption of freedom of negligence 
on the part of the plaintiff in lieu of the testimony of eye-wit­
nesses that he was guilty of contributory negligence as a 
matter of law. 

So, both upon the ground that the plaintiff's decedent was 
.guilty of contributory negligence as a matter of law, and 
that there is no evidence of negligence on the part of Brown, 
we move to strike the evidence. 

The Court: I will overmle the motion. 
Mr. Garrett: Exception. 

Note: At this point Court and counsel return to the court­
l'Oom, and are now i.J1 cou1·t before the jury: 

Jury In. 

page 226 } The Court: Gentlemen, in these cases tl1e Judge 
gives you the law as is applicable to this par­

ticular case, and that law will be contained in these instruc­
tions which I will now read to you, and which you will have 
in your room when you go to decide the case. 

As to what the facts arc in the ease you have to decide. Then 
after you decide what the facts nre you will apply those facts 
.as you find them to the law as contained in these instructions. 

Note: At this point the instructions are rend to the jury 
by the Court, following wllich tl1e ·Case is argued to the jury 
by counsel. Following whicl1 the jury retires to consider its 
verdict at 4 :20 P. M. 

Note: Thereupon counsel retire to Chambers, where, pur­
suant to leave of Court, objections and exceptions to instruc­
tions arc dictated into the record. 

In Chambers. 
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page 227 ~ OBJECTIONS AND EXCEPTIONS 
TO INSTRUCTIONS. 

Mr. Garrett~ The defendant by counsel objects and ex­
cepts to the giving of INSTRUCTION NO. 1 on behalf of the­
plaintiff for the reason that there is no evidence of probative­
value or otherwise that the J?ord wrecker ope1·ated by Viuson 
was on the prope1· or right side of the highway when meet­
ing the Dodge truck, and upon the further ground that it is. 
enoneous in that the Court tells the jury that the defendant 
was guilty of negligence as a matter of law in driving to the 
left of the highway, but omitting any reference to the defense­
of sudden emergency. '\Ve feel that it should embody the 
theory of sudden emergency, and we cite for authority Ham­
ilto1i v. Glemming, 187 Virginia, 309. 

The defendant objects and excepts to INSTRUCTION NO. 
3 given on behalf of the plaintiff for the same reason as stated 

in our objections to INSTRUCTION NO. 1. 
page 228 ~ The defendant objl!cts and excepts to the giving 

of INSTRUCTION NO. 4 in that although it pos­
sibly embodies a proper statement of the law it should he: 
qualified by telling the jury that they should disregard such 
circumstantial evidence of physical fucts where there is posi­
tive and uncontrndicted testimony by eye-witnesses and other 
witnesses of how the accident occun·ed. 

The defendant objects and excepts to the giving of IN­
STRUCTION NO. 5 on the ground that it denies the defeud­
ant his right to have the jury consider not only his theory 
but the other theories advanced in the case by both his wit­
nesses and the witnesses for the plaintiff. 

The defendant objects and excepts to the giving of IN­
STRUCTION NO. 7 on the ground that this is uot a propm· 
case for an instruction on Last Clear Chance, since regard­
less of how we view the evidence the negligence of tlie plain­
tiff continued down to the point of collision, particularlv if 
he was driving on the wrong side of the road when meeting 

the def endunt 's truck. -
page 229 ~ Secondly, there is no evidence that the defeml-

ant Brown realized that the plaintiff was in a 
situation of peril or had an opportunity to avoid the collision 
after he realized or should have realized that the plaintiff was 
in a position of peril. 

Third, that any evidence of the defendant having a Last. 
Clear Chance was testimony introduced for the purpose of 
impeaching the defenclnnt and wasn't otherwise evidence. 

Defendant by counsel objects nnd excepts to the Court 
qualifying its INSTRUCTION NO. C by adding the stntc-



Thomas W. Brown, v. John H. Vinson, Jr., Aclm'r. 137 

:ment setting forth that the defendant would still be liable 
providing that he had a Last Clear Chance for the reasons 
set forth in our objection to Instruction No. 7, and upon the 
further ground it just emphasizes the theory of Last Clear 
Chance even if it is applieable. 

Defendant objects and excepts to the giving of any instruc­
tions on behalf of the plaintiff, or otherwise that would allow 
a recovery on the part of the plaintiff, for the reasons and 

upon the grounds stated in our motion to strike 
page 230 ~ the evidence at the close of the evidence. 

HERE BEGINS OBJECTIONS AND EXCEPTIONS TO 
INSTRUCTIONS GIVEN FOR TIIE DEFENDANT. 

Mr. Goode: Counsel for the plaintiff objects nnd excepts 
to the amendment made by the Court to INSTRUCTION NO. 
2 offered by the plaintiff °because the words "and J\ot to ex­
ceed a reasonable speed under the circumstances and traffic 
conditions existing at the time" should have been included, 
because of the evidence which showed that the driver of the 
Dodge truck continued his speed until he cut to the left which 
the witness said was about ten feet from the place of impact.. 
Further, because of the evidence which showed that the Bond 
Bread truck was about to enter the highway from his right, 
nnd was in full view, and there is no e,·idence or indication 
that the Dodge truck drh·er reduced his speed 01· placed hii­
vehicle at a reasonable speed considering the circumstances 
und traffic conditions. 

And for the further reason that the record dis­
page 231 ~ closes evidence that the driver of the Dodg·e truck 

imw the Vinson wrecker being operated on the 
wrong side when more than 700 feet ahead, and that he blinked 
his lights and blew his horn but. didn't reduce his speed in 
order to take care of the existing trnffic conditions. 

Counsel for the plaintiff objects and excepts to the action 
of the Court in amending INSTRUCTION NO. 5 offered by 
the plaintiff, by which amendment the Court added the follow­
ing words "and the plaintiff is bound by so much of Brown's 
testimony ns is reasonable and uncontrndicted. '' This excep­
tion is based upon the fnct that there is no evidence upon 
which to base it, and thnt all of Brown's testimony is un. 
reasonable and incredible. 

Counsel f'or the plaintiff objects and excepts to the action 
of the Court in giving INSTRUCTION NO. D in behalf of 
the defendant because that instruction as given overlooks and 
omits the theory of "Last Clear Chance," and in effect directs 



138 Supreme Court of Appeals of Virginia 

a verdict for excessive speed, even if the def end­
page 232 } ant saw the operator of the Vinson truck in the 

wrong· lane operating at an excessive rate of speed 
while apparently oblivious of his position and danger and 
appearing to be asleep. 

Counsel for the plaintiff objects and excepts to INSTRUC­
TION NO. E given in behalf of the defendant because it fails 
to mention the qualification in reference to the doctrine of 
"Last Clear Chance.'' · 

Counsel for the plaintiff objects and excepts to the action 
of the Court in giving INSTRUCTION NO. G in behalf of 
the defendant on the ground that there is no evidenee what­
ever in the record to show that the collision in question was 
an unavoidable accident, and that the giving of such instruc­
tion will confuse the jury. 

Counsel for the plaintiff objects and excepts to the giving 
of INSTRUCTION NO. I in behalf of the defendant in the 
form as given because it doesn.'t tell the jury how long this as­

sumption should continue, and in effect overlooks 
page 233 } the evidence as to the seeing by the defendant of 

the Vinson wrecker operntor in the wrong lane 
by a person apparently inattentive and not cognizant of his 
surrounding~ and appearing to be asleep. In such situation 
it is maintained that the instruction, if 6riven at all, should 
have been amended by a proper reference to the doctrine of 
Last Clear Chance. 

Counsel for the plaintiff objects and excepts to the action 
of the Court in giving INSTRUCTION NO. J because the 
~ame covers a situntion entirely different from that disclosed 
by the record in this case; that it is based upon a tlwory differ­
ent from that testified to by the defendant himself. 

H:H'lRE ENDS OB.JECTIONS AND l~XCEPTIONS TO 
INSTRUCTIONS. 

Note: At this point Court and counsel return to the court­
room. At 6 :15 P. M. the jury knocks, viz: 

Sheriff Butterworth: They· want to come out and ask how 
it should he worded. 

The Court: Bring in the jury . 

• 
page 234 ~ Jury in. 

The Court: AH right, gentlemen. 
A Juror: Judge, Your Honor, would you give us the word-
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mg· of tllat decision agnin? None of us seemed to remember 
the exact wording of it. 

T.he Court: If you find for the plaintiff you should write 
""\Ye the jury on the issue joined find for the plaintiff against 
Ilrown and fi.""( his damages at $ • " 

And if you find for tlie defendant your verdict should be 
:as follows : '')Ve, tlie jury, on the issue joined, find for the 
def endaut." 

You elect your own fore man, your foreman signs the verdict 
:as foreman. 

Note: Thereupon tl1e jury broes back into the jury room. 
In approximately seven minutes the jury comes back into the 
-courtroom as follows: 

The Clerk: G.entlemen of the jury, have you agreed upon 
~ verdict? 

A Juror: ·we have. 
The Clerk: ''We, the jury, on the issue joined find for .the 

plaintiff ugainst Thomas W. Brown and fix the damages at 
$10~000.00. J. R. Abernathy, Foreman.·" 

page 235 ~ The Court: ~Ir. Abernathy, put the word Fore­
man under your signature. 

Note: This detail is attended to. 

The Court: Gentlemen, I certainly thank you very much 
for your attendance here. I am sorry that you had to stay 
here so long. You are now excused. 

l\[r. Garrett: If Your Honor please, before you excuse the 
jury may we have them polled! 

The Court: You may. 

Note: At this point the Court polls the jury individually. 

The Court: Is tbat aH right 1 
"Mr. Garrett: That is all right, sir. 
The Court: Gentlemen, I will have to ask you all to come 

back on t1rn tenth day of November at 10:00 A. :M. You are 
,nxcuscd until then. 

Note: At this point the jury is discbnrged and has gone . 

• Jury out. 

Mr. Garrett: If Your Honor please, we wish to move the 
Court to set aside the verdict of the jury and enter judgment 



140 Supreme Court of Appeals of Virginfa 

for the def cndant, or in the alternative award us 
page 236 ~ a new trial upon the ground that the evidence is 

insufficient to support the -verdict, and it is con­
trary to the law and tbe evidence; that tlie Court erred in 
directing the jury, botl1 in granting instructions for the plain­
tiff and amending instructions for the defendant. 

I do not know whether you want to hear us further on tbat 
at a later date, how you would want to hanclle that T 

The Court: "\Vonld you all like to argue this at a later 
date¥ 

Mr. Garrett: ,ve would certainly like to review the au­
thorities and review the evidence, sir. In otlter words, we wish 
to be more prepared to arg11e it than: we are at the present 
moment. 

It is rather difficult to anticipate all of the evidence that 
will be developed in a case and various things that do come 
up during a frial. I would the ref ore suggest, sir, that we 
set it down for argument at a later date. 

~he Court: Set it down for another da:yf 
l\fr. Garrett: Yes. 

The Court: All rigM, sir. You are going to 
page 237 ~ have this evidence written up 1 

:Mr. Garrett: Yes, sir. Undoubtedly we will 
have it written up. 

The Court: I think if you ure going to argue it you should 
have the e,ridence written np, it should be written up first be­
fore that is done. So you will have the evidence before vou 
when you argue tbe motion. · 

Mr. Garrett: Shall we get in touch with Your Honor ancI 
ma:ke an appointment? 

Of course we objected and excepted to the Court allowing: 
a non-suit, to which action of the Court in allowing the non­
suit we excepted. We moved for a mistrial, and such action 
being overruled we excepted. 

The Court: All right. The Court will take time to con­
sider tl1e judgment and will at a later date hear argument on 
the motion. 

Mr. Garrett: All rigl1t, sir. 
Mr. Goode: May I ask counsel and tI1e Court about the 

Exhibit, tl1e bumper, whether we sI1ould take it back. 
The Court: I asked Mr. Garrett about it, and he said he 

would like to keep it here until the case is disposed 
page 238 ~ of. 

:Mr. Garrett: I think we should keep it until we 
at least have an opportunity through stipulation or otherwise 
to get the measurements and so forth in the record. 
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· J\lr. Goode: I think that is perfectly nil right, sir. It may 
be put away somewhere right here. 

Hearing concluded. 

1/10/54. 
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